
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, January 25, 2024 
Page 1  

 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

911 SUNSET DRIVE, HOLLISTER, CALIFORNIA 
THURSDAY, JANUARY 25, 2024 – 5:00 P.M. 

SUPPORT SERVICES BUILDING, 2nd-FLOOR, GREAT ROOM 
IN PERSON AND BY VIDEO CONFERENCE 

https://zoom.us/j/92542132335?pwd=QlRsMVlZMmQrbnJ0K3ROK1Q2bVpqZz09 
Meeting ID: 925 4213 2335 

Passcode: 235987 

 
Mission Statement - The San Benito Health Care District is a public agency that serves as a responsive, 
comprehensive health care resource for its patients, physicians, and the health care consumers of the community. 
Vision Statement - San Benito Health Care District is committed to meeting community health care needs with 
quality care in a safe and compassionate environment. 

 
San Benito Health Care District is a public agency that serves as a responsive, comprehensive health care 

resource for its patients, physicians and the community. 
 
 

AMENDED AGENDA 
 

Presented By: 
 

1. Call to Order / Roll Call         (Hernandez) 
 

2. Board Announcements         (Hernandez) 
 

3. Public Comment          (Hernandez)  
This opportunity is provided for members of the public to make a brief 
statement, not to exceed three (3) minutes, on matters within the jurisdiction 
of this District Board, which are not otherwise covered under an item on this agenda. 
This is the appropriate place to comment on items on the Consent 
Agenda. Board Members may not deliberate or take action on an item not on 
the duly posted agenda. Written comments for the Board should be provided 
to the Board clerk for the official record. Whenever possible, written correspondence 
should be submitted to the Board in advance of the meeting 
to provide adequate time for its consideration. Speaker cards are available. 

 
 
 

https://zoom.us/j/92542132335?pwd=QlRsMVlZMmQrbnJ0K3ROK1Q2bVpqZz09


Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, January 25, 2024 
Page 2  

 
4. Consent Agenda – General Business (Page 1 - 27)     (Hernandez) 

The Consent Agenda deals with routine and non-controversial matters. The vote on the 
Consent Agenda shall apply to each item that has not been removed. A Board Member 
may pull an item from the Consent Agenda for discussion. One motion shall be made 
to adopt all non-removed items on the Consent Agenda. 
 
A. Consider and Approve Minutes of the Regular  Meeting of the Board of Directors  

– December 21, 2023 
 

B. Consider and Approve Minutes of the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors 
– January 8, 2024 
 

C. Consider and Approve Critical Value/Test Reporting and “Read Back” Policy 
 

D. Receive Officer/Director Written Reports - No action required. 
 

• Provider Services & Clinic Operations 
• Skilled Nursing Facilities Reports (Mabie Southside/Northside) 
• Laboratory and Radiology 
• Foundation Report 
• Marketing/Public Relations 
• Facilities Report 

 
Recommended Action: Approval of Consent Agenda Items (A) through (D). 

 
► Report 
► Board Questions 
► Public Comment 
► Motion/Second 
► Action/Board Vote-Roll Call 

 
5. Medical Executive Committee (Page 28 - 35)      (Dr. Bogey) 

 
A. Consider and Approve Medical Staff Credentials: January 17, 2024 

 
Recommended Action: Approval of Credentials 

 
► Report 
► Board Questions 
► Public Comment 
► Motion/Second 
► Action/Board Vote-Roll Call 

 
B. Consider and Approve Family Medicine Privilege Revisions 

Recommended Action: Approval of Privileges Revisions 
 

► Report 
► Board Questions 
► Public Comment 
► Motion/Second 
► Action/Board Vote-Roll Call 



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, January 25, 2024 
Page 3  

 
C. Consider and Approve CRNA Privilege Revisions 

Recommended Action: Approval of Privileges Revisions 
 

► Report 
► Board Questions 
► Public Comment 
► Motion/Second 
► Action/Board Vote-Roll Call 

 

6. Receive Informational Reports     (Page 36 - 53) 
A. Presentation on Fair Market Valuation                                                             (Healthcare  

 Appraisers) 
► Public Comment 

 
B. Temporary Advisory Committee Update                          (Hernandez/Pack) 

 
► Public Comment 

 
C. Interim Chief Executive Officer                (Casillas) 

 
► Public Comment 

 
D. Chief Nursing Officer                  (Posey) 

 
► Public Comment 

 
E. Finance Committee                  (Robinson) 

 
1. Finance Committee Meeting Minutes – January 18, 2024 

 
2. Review Financial Updates 

• Financial Statements –December 2023 
• Finance Dashboard – December 2023 
• Supplemental Payments 

   
►  Public Comment 

 
7. Action Items    (Page 54 - 118) 

 
A. Consider Recommendation for Board Approval of Consolidated                 (Robinson) 

CHA/ Hospital Council Dues 2024 (Page 54-59)      

► Report 
► Board Questions 
► Public Comment 
► Motion/Second 
► Action/Board Vote-Roll Call 

 
 
 

 



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, January 25, 2024 
Page 4  

 
B. Consider Approval of Professional Services Agreement and a Recruitment Agreement  (Robinson) 
      for Joseph Fabry, D.O.  (Page 60 - 78)         
 

Recommended Action: Approve Professional Service Agreement and Recruitment 
Agreement 

► Report 
► Board Questions 
► Public Comment 
► Motion/Second 
► Action/Board Vote-Roll Call 

 
C. Consider Approval of Professional Services Agreement for                            (Robinson) 
 Stefan Klein, MD.  (Page 79 - 87) 
 

Recommended Action: Approve Professional Services Agreement 

► Report 
► Board Questions 
► Public Comment 
► Motion/Second 
► Action/Board Vote-Roll Call 

 
D. Consider Appointment of Mary Casillas as Chief Executive Officer and                          (Tartala) 

Approval of the Employment Agreement.    (Page 88-118)                                                                              
                                                                 
Recommended Action: Appoint Mary Casillas as Chief Executive Officer and 
Approve Employment Agreement 

► Report 
► Board Questions 
► Public Comment 
► Motion/Second 
► Action/Board Vote-Roll Call 

 
8. Public Comment (Hernandez) 

This opportunity is provided for members to comment on the closed session topics, not 
to exceed three (3) minutes. 
 

9. Closed Session (Hernandez) 
(See Attached Closed Session Sheet Information) 

 
10. Reconvene Open Session / Closed Session Report (Hernandez) 

 

11. Adjournment (Hernandez) 
 

The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for Thursday,  
February 22, 2024 at 5:00 p.m., Great Room. 

The complete Board packet including subsequently distributed materials and presentations 
is available at the Board Meeting, in the Administrative Offices of the District, and posted 
on the District’s website at https://www.hazelhawkins.com/news/categories/meeting-
agendas/. All items appearing on the agenda are subject to action by the Board. Staff and 

http://www.hazelhawkins.com/news/categories/meeting-agendas/
http://www.hazelhawkins.com/news/categories/meeting-agendas/
http://www.hazelhawkins.com/news/categories/meeting-agendas/
http://www.hazelhawkins.com/news/categories/meeting-agendas/
http://www.hazelhawkins.com/news/categories/meeting-agendas/


Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, January 25, 2024 
Page 5  

Committee recommendations are subject to change by the Board. 
 

Any public record distributed to the Board less than 72 hours prior to this meeting in connection with any 
agenda item shall be made available for public inspection at the District office. Public records distributed 
during the meeting, if prepared by the District, will be available for public inspection at the meeting. If the 
public record is prepared by a third party and distributed at the meeting, it will be made available for public 
inspection following the meeting at the District office. 

 
Notes: Requests for a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or 
services, to attend or participate in a meeting should be made to District Administration during regular 
business hours at 831-636-2673. Notification received 48 hours before the meeting will enable the District 
to make reasonable accommodations. 







REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

SUPPORT SERVICES BUILDING, 2ND-FLOOR, GREAT ROOM 

THURSDAY, DECEMBER 21, 2023 
5:00 P.M. 

MINUTES 

HAZEL HAWKINS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL 

Directors Present 
Jeri Hernandez, Board Member 
Bill Johnson, Board Member 
Devon Pack, Board Member 

Josie Sanchez, Board Member 
Rick Shelton, Board Member 

Also Present 
Mary Casillas, Interim Chief Executive Officer 

Mark Robinson, Chief Financial Officer 
Andie Posey, Interim Chief Nursing Officer 

Amy Breen-Lema, VP, Clinic Ambulatory & Physician Services 
Michael Bogey, MD, Chief of Staff 

Heidi A. Quinn, District Legal Counsel 
Chela Brewer, Executive Assistant 

Suzie Mays, Director of Project Management 

1. Call to Order

Attendance was taken by roll call; Directors Hernandez, Johnson, Pack, Sanchez, and Shelton were present.
A quorum was present and Director Hernandez called the meeting to order at 5:05 p.m.

2. Board Announcement

Director Hernandez noted the Closed Session Agenda Item Hearing/Reports – Report from Quality, Risk,
and Compliance will not be discussed.

3. Public Comment

An opportunity was provided for public comment and individuals were given three minutes to address the
Board Members and Administration.

Ms. Casillas noted the District has been approved for a $10M loan from the Distressed Hospital Loan
Program (DHLP), but has not received the funds.  The District is required to file special paperwork due to
the bankruptcy, which is in progress between the State and bankruptcy legal counsel.

4. Consent Agenda - General Business

A. Consider and Approve Minutes of the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors – November 14,
2023

B. Consider and Approve Minutes of the Special and Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors –
November 16, 2023

1



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, December 21, 2023 

C. Receive Officer/Director Written Reports - No action required.

• Provider Services & Clinic Operations
• Skilled Nursing Facilities Reports (Mabie Southside/Northside)
• Laboratory and Radiology
• Foundation Report
• Marketing/Public Relations

D. Receive Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes- December 14, 2023

Director Hernandez presented the consent agenda items before the Board for action.  This information was 
included in the Board packet. 

MOTION:  By Director Hernandez to approve Consent Agenda – General Business, Items (A) through 
(D), as presented; Second by Director Johnson. 

Moved/Seconded/Unanimously Carried.  Ayes: Directors Hernandez, Johnson, Pack, Sanchez, and 
Shelton.  Approved 5-0 by roll call.   

5. Report from the Medical Executive Committee Meeting on December 20, 2023 and
Recommendations for Board Approval of the following:

A. Medical Staff Credentials Report:

Dr. Bogey, Chief of Staff, provided a review of the Credentials Report dated December 20, 2023,
which was included in the packet.

Items:  Proposed Approval of the Medical Executive Committee Credentials Report for six (6) New
Appointments, two (2) Reappointments, one (1) Additional Privileges, and three (3)
Resignations/Retirements.

Proposed Approval of the Interdisciplinary Practice Committee Credentials Report for one (1) New
Appointment, three (3) Reappointments, one (1) Change in Status, and four (4)
Resignations/Retirements.

An opportunity was provided for public comment and individuals were given three minutes to address
the Board Members and Administration.

MOTION: By Director Shelton to approve the Credentials Reports as presented; Second by Director 
Sanchez.                              .  

Moved/Seconded/and Unanimously Carried: Ayes: Directors Hernandez, Johnson, Pack, Sanchez, and 
Shelton.  Approved 5-0 by roll call. 

6. Receive Informational Reports

A. Interim Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Casillas provided highlights of the Interim CEO Report, which can be found in the Board packet.
Highlights include:

2



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, December 21, 2023 

• Attended the bankruptcy trial December 4 – 7; a decision is expected mid-January 2024.
• Meetings continue with the temporary Ad Hoc Committee to review the Letters of Intent (LOIs)

and due diligence is in progress with interested parties.
• A site visit with an interested party was conducted December 19th.
• There was an irrigation pipe break in the driveway at the back of the hospital on December 8 – 9.

The staff did an amazing job, including Engineering, in dealing with the leak and communicating
with patients.  Some patients were relocated to other areas in the hospital until the leak was fixed
and the driveway was repaired.

• Polling results are expected to be provided in January 2024.
• Work continues with HCA for the Fair Market Valuation and results are expected to be available

in January 2024.
• A tour was conducted with Senator Laird and the District discussed the seismic issues and the need

for capital funding.

An opportunity was provided for public comment and individuals were given three minutes to address 
the Board Members and Administration. 

B. Chief Nursing Officer

Ms. Posey provided highlights of the Chief Nursing Officer Report, which can be found in the Board
packet.

• Identifying and fixing nursing equipment.
• New batteries have been ordered for computers on wheels in ICU.
• Some new supplies/instruments were ordered and placed on shelf in the OR.
• Mock Survey was conducted with Joint Commission Resources.
• Finance/Nursing/Case Management huddle is conducted daily.

C. Financial Report

1. Finance Committee Meeting Minutes – December 14, 2023

2. Review Financial Updates

• Financial Statements – November 2023
• Finance Dashboard – November 2023
• HCAI – Consent to DHLP Loan
• Employee Retention Credit
• ED Billing – Innova Revenue Group

Highlights include:   

• The District received a letter of consent from HCAI approving to obtain the DHLP loan of
$10M from CHFFA.

• The District applied to the IRS for the Employee Retention Credit in September 2023.  The
District does not expect a ruling until early 2024 due to a backlog of applications.

• ED Billing Comparison Worksheet for O/P Visits as of December 13, 2023 was reviewed and
is included in the packet.

3



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, December 21, 2023 

3. Review FYE June 30, 2023 Reports
• Audited Financial Statement
• GASB 68 Disclosure

Mr. Rick Jackson, JWT & Associates, LLP, reviewed the FYE June 30, 2023 Audited 
Financial Statements and the GASB 68 Disclosure, which were included in the Board packet. 

An opportunity was provided for public comment and individuals were given three minutes to address 
the Board Members and Administration. 

7. Action Items

A. Consider Recommendation for Board Approval of DH Leadership Forum 2024 Annual Dues in the
Amount of $53,342.51

Staff reviewed the 2024 annual participation dues from District Hospital Leadership Forum in the
amount of $53,342.51, which was included in the Board packet.

An opportunity was provided for public comment and no public comment was received.

MOTION:  By Director Hernandez to approve payment of District Hospital Leadership Forum 2024
Annual Dues in the Amount of $53,342.51; Second by Director Shelton.

Moved/Seconded/and Unanimously Carried: Ayes: Directors Hernandez, Johnson, Pack, Sanchez,
and Shelton.  Approved 5-0 by roll call vote.

B. Consider Recommendation for Board Approval of DH TreanorHL 4D Seismic Evaluation and
MT/CAP- Scoping to Schematic Design Not to Exceed $152,000.00

Staff reviewed the proposal fromTreanorHL to provide Architectural and Engineering services for
SPC 4D Seismic Evaluation for and MT/CAP project, which was included in the Board packet.

An opportunity was provided for public comment and no public comment was received.

MOTION:  By Director Hernandez to approve the DH TreanorHL Proposal to provide Architectural
and Engineering services for SPC 4D Seismic Evaluation and MT/CAP project not to exceed
$152,000.00; Second by Director Pack.

Moved/Seconded/and Unanimously Carried: Ayes: Directors Hernandez, Johnson, Pack, Sanchez,
and Shelton.  Approved 5-0 by roll call vote.

C. Consider Recommendation for Board Approval of Anthem Blue Cross Commercial Plan
Amendment, a Two Year Contract, Effective 01/01/2024

Staff reviewed the Anthem Blue Cross Commercial Plan Amendment, which was included in the Board
packet.

An opportunity was provided for public comment and no public comment was received.

MOTION:  By Director Hernandez to approve the Anthem Blue Cross Commercial Plan
Amendment, a Two Year Contract, Effective 01/01/2024; Second by Director Sanchez.

4



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, December 21, 2023 

Moved/Seconded/and Unanimously Carried: Ayes: Directors Hernandez, Johnson, Pack, Sanchez, 
and Shelton.  Approved 5-0 by roll call vote. 

D. Consider Recommendation for Board Approval of Great Commission Association of Southern
Baptist Churches for Fourth Street Clinic Lease Agreement Renewal Effective 2/01/24 - 1/31/29 (5
year contract) in the Amount of $7,145.00 with a 3% Increase Each Year

Staff reviewed the lease agreement renewal, which was included in the Board packet.

An opportunity was provided for public comment and no public comment was received.

MOTION:  By Director Hernandez to approve the Great Commission Association of Southern
Baptist Churches for Fourth Street Clinic Lease Agreement Renewal Effective 2/01/24 - 1/31/29 (5
year contract) in the Amount of $7,145.00 with a 3% Increase Each Year; Second by Director
Sanchez.

Moved/Seconded/and Unanimously Carried: Ayes: Directors Hernandez, Johnson, Pack, Sanchez,
and Shelton.  Approved 5-0 by roll call vote.

E. Consider Recommendation for Board Approval of Gallagher Core 360 Proposal/Quote for Worker’s
Compensation Insurance Effective 1/1/24-1/1/25 in the Amount of $1,250,295

Staff reviewed the agreement for worker’s compensation insurance, which was included in the Board
packet.

An opportunity was provided for public comment and individuals were given three minutes to address
the Board Members and Administration.

MOTION:  By Director Hernandez to approve the Gallagher Core 360 Proposal/Quote for Worker’s
Compensation Insurance Effective 1/1/24-1/1/25 in the Amount of $1,250,295; Second by Director
Johnson.

Moved/Seconded/and Unanimously Carried: Ayes: Directors Hernandez, Johnson, Pack, Sanchez,
and Shelton.  Approved 5-0 by roll call vote.

F. Consider Board Resolution 2023-33 Setting 2024 Board Meeting Calendar

A copy of Resolution 2023-33 Setting the 2024 Board Meeting schedule was included in the Board
packet for consideration.

An opportunity was provided for public comment and no public comment was received.

MOTION:  By Director Hernandez to approve Resolution 2023-33 Setting the 2024 Board Meeting;
Second by Director Sanchez.

Moved/Seconded/and Unanimously Carried: Ayes: Directors Hernandez, Johnson, Pack, Sanchez,
and Shelton.  Approved 5-0 by roll call vote.

8. Public Comment

An opportunity was provided for public comment and no public comment was received.
5



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, December 21, 2023  

9. Closed Session

President Hernandez announced the items to be discussed in Closed Session as listed on the posted Agenda
is Conference with Legal Counsel-Existing Litigation, Government Code §54956.9(d)(1) and Conference
with Labor Negotiator, Government Code §54957.6.

10. Reconvene Open Session/Closed Session Report

The Board of Directors reconvened Open Session at 8:25 p.m. District Counsel Quinn reported that in
Closed Session the Board discussed Conference with Legal Counsel-Existing Litigation, Government
Code §54956.9(d)(1) and Conference with Labor Negotiator, Government Code §54957.6.  Information
was provided and no reportable action was taken.

11. Adjournment:

There being no further regular business or actions, the meeting was adjourned at 8:25 p.m.

The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for Thursday, January 25, 2024 at 5:00
p.m., and will be conducted in person.

/tr

6



SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

SUPPORT SERVICES BLDG., 2ND-GREAT ROOM 

MONDAY, JANUARY 8, 2024  
2:00PM 

MINUTES 
IN PERSON AND BY ZOOM VIDEO CONFERENCE 

MINUTES 

Directors Present 
Jeri Hernandez, Board Member 
Josie Sanchez, Board Member 
Rick Shelton, Board Member 

Absent 
Bill Johnson, Board Member 
Devon Pack, Board Member 

Also Present   
Mark Robinson, Chief Financial Officer 

Amy Breen-Lema, VP Clinic, Ambulatory, & Phys. Services 
Andrea Posey, Interim Chief Nursing Officer 

Heidi Quinn, District Legal Counsel 
Chela Brewer, Executive Assistant 

Suzie Mays, Director, Project Management 

1. Call to Order- Roll Call

Directors Hernandez, Shelton and Sanchez were present; attendance was taken by roll
call. A quorum was present and the Special Meeting was called to order at 2:00 pm by
Director Hernandez.

Director Johnson was absent; Director Pack was unable to participate from his
teleconference location.

2. Update on Potential Transaction Partners

Richard Peil with B. Riley provided update on potential transactions partners.

• (AAM) American Advance Management previously presented the District with a
Letter of Intent (LOI), which included a term sheet that was broad in nature. AAM is
in the process of preparing a revised LOI with definitive financial terms on what the
transaction will look like.

7



• County of San Benito Proposal: There has been no significant change other than there
is a scheduled meeting with the County next week, Wednesday, January 17th 2024 at
Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital.

• San Benito Healthcare Alliance. A meeting with San Benito Healthcare Alliance
Principals and their Consultants took place on December 19, 2023. Mr. Peil is
expecting an update.

An opportunity was provided for public comment and individuals were given three 
minutes to address the Board Members and Administration. 

3. Action Item

A. Consider Temporary Advisory Committee’s Recommendation regarding Insight’s
Letter of Intent for Proposed Business Transaction with the District and Provide
Authority to Negotiate.

Director Hernandez reported that nearly a year ago in February 23, 2023 the Board of
Directors received a special presentation by its financial advisor Mr. Richard Peil
with B. Riley advisory regarding strategic partnership options. The Board discussed
in length B.  Riley’s efforts to solicit interest in the Hospital and provided overview
of three potential scenarios that can maximize the value of the District.

At the May 23, 2023, Regular Board Meeting, the Board identified its priorities,
which included:
• Long standing history and experience with hospital administration;
• Proven track record of maintaining quality of care;
• Able to litigate risks and liabilities;
• Further develop clinics and expansion of care; and
• Secure financing.

The Board also formed a Temporary Advisory Committee (Ad Hoc Committee or 
Committee) and appointed Director Hernandez and Director Pack as the Committee 
Members. 

Over the past year, the Ad Hoc Committee has been meeting with the District 
advisors regarding various affiliations models such as lease, sale and or a more 
phased approach. The Ad Hoc Committee is focused on an affiliation model that is in 
the best interest of the District and the community. The Committee has also discussed 
the various potential partners who have expressed interest in the District facilities, 
and has been providing regular updates to the Board and to the public.    

Director Hernandez is pleased to present a Letter of Intent (LOI) from Insight to the 
Board for consideration. The Committee is seeking Board authority to execute the 
LOI and continue negotiations with Insight.  Director Hernandez introduced Richard 

8



9 

Peil with B. Riley, Robert Miller, of Hooper, Lundy & Bookman, District consultants, 
and Insight, who will provide a presentation. 

Richard Peil discussed the general terms of the LOI; which calls for the acquisition of 
all the Hospital’s assets, including real estate, buildings and equipment. The estimated 
purchase agreement is between $59,000,000 and $65,000,000, subject to evaluation 
and appraisal.    

Robert Miller also provided summary of LOI. and answered questions from the 
Board. 

Insight’s Atif Bawaha, Chief Strategy Officer, Baseer Tajuddin, General Counsel and 
Dayne Walling, Director of Public Policy & Government were in attendance.  Insight 
commended the current Hospital leadership, provided an overview of its background, 
discussed its similarities to the District Hospital, and stated a commitment to invest in the 
community.  A few highlights are set forth below: 

Insight has campuses in Michigan, Illinois, and IowaThere are similarities between Insight and 
Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital. In 2008, Insight acquired Headquarters in the inner city in 
Michigan. Insight started as a small office with one physician. Now it’s a multi-disciplinary 
Heath Center, offering Neuro Surgery, Pain Management, Orthopedic, Therapy and more 
services. 

• In 2021 Insight acquired the oldest Hospital in Chicago formally owned by Trinity
Health, a safety net hospital serving about fifty percent Medicaid patients. They filed
for Bankruptcy in the middle of Covid. They had losses at about 8 million per month.
Insight acquired the hospital and have been able to successfully turn the hospital
around with various service lines.

• Recently, Insight acquired a hospital in Iowa facing financial distress. Insight is in the
early stages of stabilizing the hospital.

• Insight Commends Hazel’s Leadership Team for stabilizing the hospital,
• Insight wants HHMH to continue to be a Community Hospital, and has the goal to

invest in a community
• Insight plans to offer high end services such as Neurology, Surgery and more. In

addition, it plans to upgrade the Emergency Department and work toward building
physician network and keep service in-house

An opportunity was provided for public comment and individuals were given three 
minutes to address the Board Members and Administration. 

MOTION:  By Director Hernandez to approve execution of the Letter of Intent with 
Insight, and Authorize District Staff to Negotiate with Insight; 
Second by Director Shelton. 



10 

Moved/Seconded/and Unanimously Carried: Ayes: Directors Hernandez, Sanchez, and 
Shelton.  Approved 3-0 by roll call, with Directors Pack and Johnson absent.   

4. Public Comment

An opportunity was provided for public comment and no public comment was received.

5. Closed Session
President Hernandez announced the item to be discussed in Closed Session as listed on
the posted Agenda: Conference with Legal Counsel-Existing Litigation, Government
Code §54956.9(d)(1) : San Benito Health Care District dba Hazel Hawkins Memorial
Hospital, Case No. 23-50544 (United States Bankruptcy Court for the Northern District
of California, San Jose Division)

6. Reconvene Open Session/Closed Session Report

The Board of Directors reconvened Open Session at 3:02  p.m. District Counsel Quinn
reported that in Closed Session the Board discussed Conference with Legal Counsel-
Existing Litigation, Government Code §54956.9(d)(1).  Information was provided to the
Board, direction was given to Staff, but no reportable action was taken.

7. Adjournment:
There being no further special business or actions, the meeting was adjourned at 3:02
p.m.

The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors in scheduled for Thursday, January 
25, 2024 at 5:00 p.m. 

. 



Critical Value/Test Reporting and “Read Back”

Disclaimer

PDF DISCLAIMER LEGAL NOTICE: This PDF was requested on 1/4/2024 and will be made available in the Lucidoc application
until midnight on the requested day. PDFs should not be used as official documentation. Contents of official documents are subject
to change without notice. Lucidoc makes no representation or warranty whatsoever regarding the completeness, accuracy, "up-to-
dateness", or adequacy of the information or materials contained herein. Please refer to Lucidoc for the most up to date information.

CONFIDENTIALITY LEGAL NOTICE: This PDF may contain confidential information and is intended solely for the addressee. The
information may also be legally privileged. This transmission is sent in trust, for the sole purpose of delivery to the intended
recipient. If you have received this transmission in error, any use, reproduction, or dissemination of this transmission is strictly
prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please immediately notify the sender and permanently delete this file.

Revision Insight

Document ID: 10381
Revision Number: 1
Owner: Bernadette Enderez,
Revision Official Date: No revision official date

Revision Note:
Updated. Approved by P&P and MEC. Changing to HTML format.

Page 1

11



DocID: 10381
Revision: 1
Status: In preparation
Department: Nursing Administration
Manual(s):

Policy : Critical Value/Test Reporting and “Read Back”

PURPOSE

To provide guidelines for the accurate and timely communications (verbally or by telephone) of critical value/test results to the ordering physician, with
verification “read back”).

POLICY

A. Reporters of Critical Results/Values
1. Licensed Laboratory/Radiology/Respiratory Personnel

a. Critical results/values for an Inpatient:  Licensed Laboratory/Radiology/Respiratory Care staff will call all critical value/test reports to the
appropriate nursing unit (respiratory Care Practitioner will also notify physician directly) and communicate information directly to the
Registered Nurse or Licensed Vocational Nurse (RN/LVN  caring for the patient, or, if not available, to another RN/LVN.

b. Critical results/values for an Outpatient:  Licensed Laboratory/Radiology/Respiratory Care staff will call critical value/test reports to the
appropriate person(s) as designated below.

2. Nursing Personnel:
a. The RN or LVN responsible for the patient’s care will report critical value/test results immediately to the physician.

B. Verbal Communication
1. All physicians and licensed personnel and/or authorized personnel who receive a verbal communication of critical value/tests results will “read

back” the result to the person who reports the information.

2. “Read back” communication will be documented in the medical record.

DEFINITIONS

1. Critical value/test results: Laboratory values and other test results that require an immediate/emergency response/intervention from a physician or
nurse

2. Reporters of critical value/test results: Medical staff and/or licensed healthcare personnel.

3. Receivers of critical value/test results:
District Facilities – Medical Staff or licensed healthcare personnel

Private Physician Offices - Medical Staff, licensed healthcare personnel, or non-licensed personnel authorized by the physician to accept and
communicate critical lab values/tests results.

4. District Facilities – includes rural health clinics, specialty clinics, and skilled nursing facilities operated under San Benito Healthcare District

5. Licensed healthcare Personnel: Physician, clinical Laboratory Scientist/Technician, Registered Nurse, License Vocational Nurse, Radiology
Technician, Respiratory Care Practitioner.

6. Immediately:  Time from Licensed Healthcare Personnel awareness of critical value/test results to time of physician response is less than or equal to
sixty (60) minutes.

PROCEDURE

1. Licensed healthcare Personnel will report critical tests results to the ordering physician (or his/her designee) or appropriate nursing unit within designated
time frames.  (See List of Critical / Semi Critical Values Requiring Attention attached )

2. Personnel who perform diagnostic tests (including, but not limited to, laboratory, imaging studies, electrocardiograms, etc.) will follow department specific
policies for reporting, if in conflict with these guidelines.

3. Licensed Healthcare Personnel reporting a critical value/test result will provide the following information when calling:
a. District Facility

1. State their name and title

2. Request to speak to the licensed healthcare person responsible for the patient.

3. Indicate they are reporting a “critical value/test” report

4. Communicate critical value to licensed healthcare personnel.

5. Request a “read-back” verification upon completion of report.

6. Document “read-back” performed, name of the receiver, name of the reporter, and date/time of report.

7. Send (i.e. via FAX, computer system) the critical value/test result to the receiving person or nursing unit, if applicable.

b. Private Physician Offices
1. State their name and title

2. Indicate they are reporting a “critical value/test report

3. Communicate critical value to licensed healthcare personnel or designated office staff.

Document ID 10381 Revision   1 Hazel Hawkins Memorial HospitalPage 2
12



4. Request a read-back verification

5. Document “read-back” performed, name of the receiver, name of the reporter, and date/time of report.

4. Responsibilities of the person receiving the critical test results:
a. District Facility

1. State their name and title

2. Write down the critical value; and back the value to the reporting person.

3. Immediately (within sixty (60) minutes of receiving result) transmit the critical test value to the physician or practitioner responsible for
the care of the patient.
Exception: Do not call the physician or practitioner responsible for the care of the patient for “improving values, even when abnormal’
unless otherwise ordered, or when there are orders to handle a critical value, such as “if glucose greater than 400 mg/dl, give X units of
insulin.”

4. Document in the medical record; physician notified, critical value/test results received, date/time and intervention(s), as appropriate.
Private Physician’s Office

a. Determined by the physician’s office practices

5. Verbal “face to face” reporting of critical value/test results may occur during procedures when it might be disruptive to patient care to
record critical value/tests results, such as in surgery or the emergency department.  Under these circumstances, a “repeat-back” of
information reported should occur.

6. Laboratory/Diagnostic Imaging/Respiratory Results of “STAT”  are not automatically considered critical test results unless they meet San
Benito county healthcare District’s established criteria.  (See “List of Critical/Semi Critical Values Requiring Attention” attached).

7. Reported critical laboratory values or other test results requiring immediate interventions must be communicated directly to the ordering
physician.  If necessary, the ordering practitioner will initiate the chain of command as designated in the “List of Critical/Semi Critical
Values Requiring Attention”.

Licensed healthcare personnel (i.e. clinical Laboratory Scientist/Technician, Registered Nurse, Licensed Vocational Nurse, Radiologist/Radiology
Technician) will report critical test results to the ordering physician or his/her designee, according to the guidelines below.

Test Values Requiring Critical Intervention:

Licensed healthcare personnel will immediately attempt direct communication with the ordering physician or his/her designee.  If unable to reach the
ordering physician within thirty (30) minutes,  contact the following (chain of command):

Physician on-call for the ordering Physician

On-duty Emergency Physician

Chief of Department/Service

Chief of Staff

REFERENCES

Joint Commission’s National Patient Safety Goals

APPENDIX

APPENDIX A

LIST OF LABORATORY CRITICAL RESULTS/VALUES

For Laboratory tests performed on outpatients during after hours, the following chain of command procedure will be followed if unable to reach the ordering
physician within 60 minutes of obtaining the test result:

1. Contact the physician on call for the ordering physician

2. Contact the Laboratory Medical Director- at the discretion of the Laboratory Medical Director, the patient will be invited to come to the Emergency Room
to have the labs repeated.

3. If the Laboratory Medical Director is unable to reach the patient, the Lab Director or designee will call for a wellness check on the patient.

TEST NAME LOW HIGH
CALL MD within 60 minutes of obtained test results

CHEMISTRY
Amylase IU/L 600

ALT U/L 1000

AST IU/L 300

Calcium mg/dl 6.9 13.1

BUN mg/dl 100

Chloride mmol/l 75 125

CK IU/L 1000

CKMB ng/mL 3.6

CO2 meq/L 11 40

Creatinine mg/dl 7

Document ID 10381 Revision   1 Hazel Hawkins Memorial HospitalPage 3

13



Glucose mg/dl 70 300

Glucose
(Prenatal)

mg/dl 70 300

Lactic acid mmol/l 2.0

Magnesium mg/dl 1.1 4.9

Phosphorus mg/dl 1.4

Potassium mmol/l 2.7 6.1

Procalcitonin ng/ml 2.0

Sodium mmol/l 120 156

Troponin I ng/L Female= 52
Male= 77

Uric Acid mg/dl 0.9

COAGULATION

PT (INR) sec >5

APTT sec >120

D-DIMER ng/mL 500
Above cut-off for >51 yrs old
Age X 100

HEMATOLOGY
Hematocrit % 20 61

Hemoglobin gm/dL 6.9 21

Platelets /mm3 30,000 900,000

WBC /mm3 <1.5 >25

Metamyelocyte % 4 without prior history

Blast % 1 without prior history

DRUG LEVELS
Acetaminophen ug/mL 160

Carbamazepine ug/mL 12

Digoxin ng/mL 2.1

Gentamycin ug/mL 2.1 (trough)

Phenobarbital ug/mL 61

Phentoin ug/mL 41

Salicylate mg/dL 31

DRUG LEVELS
Theophylline ug/mL 20
Vancomycin ug/mL 16 (trough)
Valproic Acid ug/mL 200
MICROBIOLOGY CALL MD within 60 minutes for any POSITIVE result

AFB

Final CSF Report

Blood Culture Smear

CSF Gram Stain

Blood Culture Report

Preliminary CSF Report

MOLECULAR CALL MD within 60 minutes for any POSITIVE result

Meningitis Panel Listeria monocytogenes
Plesiomonas shigelloides
Escherichia coli K1
Haemophilus influenza       
Neisseria meningitidis
Streptococcus agalactiae
Streptococcus pneumoniae
Cytomegalovirus
Enterovirus
Herpes simplex virus 1, 2 & 6
Human parechovirus
Varicella Zoster virus
Crytococcus neoformans/gattii

Document ID 10381 Revision   1 Hazel Hawkins Memorial HospitalPage 4
14



CALL MD WITHIN 12 HOURS FOR ANY POSITIVE RESULTS
Positive Report of any of the following:

SOURCE PATHOGEN/VIRUS/BACTERIA
BLOOD HIV

Malarai Parasites (new)
Leukemia (new)
Presence of sickle cells on blood smear

STOOL Salmonella
Shigella
Vibrio cholerae
Vibrio species
Yersinia enterolitica
Campylobacter
Cryptosporidium
E.coli (EPEC,EAEC,ETEC,STEC,EIEC)
E0157:H7
Norovirus G1/G2

RESPIRATORY Influenza A (H1, H1 2009, H3, no subtype)
Influenza B
Bordetella pertussis (ptxP)
Chlamydia pneumoniae
Mycoplasma pneumonia
Respiratory Syncytial Virus ( < 3yrs old; > 65 years old)

OTHER Methicillin Resistant Staph aureus (MRSA) Nares
Methicillin Resistant Staph aureus (MRSA) Tissue
Vanocomycin Resistant enterococcus  (VRE) Isolates

APPENDIX B

LIST OF DIAGNOSTIC IMAGING/ ECHOCARDIOLOGY CRITICAL TEST RESULTS/REPORTS

1. This section will serve to identify specific Diagnostic Imaging/Echocardiography test results that are deemed critical or life-threatening, as well as the
department procedure for communicating, documenting, and auditing these findings.

2. When dictating the procedure, the Radiologist/Cardiologist will indicate that this is a critical result, and results will be delivered to the referring provider
within 30 minutes of exam completion.

CRITICAL RESULTS:

A. Critical Radiology results will be communicated verbally followed by an immediate written report, whenever the following outcomes are noted:
a. Incorrect placement of tubes or catheters

b. Stroke

c. Pneumothorax, tension pneumothorax, or hemothorax

d. Free air in the abdomen - perforation, or obstruction

e. Pulmonary embolism

f. Head or abdominal hemorrhage

g. Deep vein thrombosis (DVT) or newly identified thrombosis/occlusion

h. Spinal cord compression

i. Post-surgical foreign body evaluation

j. Bronchial foreign body

k. Ectopic pregnancy, prolapsed cord, abruption

l. Ovarian or testicular torsion

m. BIRAD IV and V mammography classifications

n. Any significant complications arising from invasive procedures performed in the Diagnostic Imaging Department

o. Findings suggestive of descending/abdominal aortic dissection or new aortic aneurysm larger than 5cm

B. Critical Cardiology results will be communicated verbally followed by an immediate written report, whenever the following outcomes are noted:
a. Findings suggestive of descending/abdominal aortic dissection or new aortic aneurysm larger than 5cm

Document ID 10381 Revision   1 Hazel Hawkins Memorial HospitalPage 5

15



b. Any other results deemed by the Cardiologist to be significant and/or unexpected

c. New findings suggestive of severe stenosis with AVA less than or equal to 1.0 cm2

d. New Pericardial effusion with physiology suggestive of pericardial tamponade or increased intra-pericardial pressure or significant change in
pericardial fluid

e. New echo density or structure suggestive of vegetation or intracardiac mass

f. New severe valve disruption identified based on prior exams

g. Newly identified severe LV systolic dysfunction with an ejection fraction of less than 35%

h. Isolated right ventricular enlargement in the setting of acute pulmonary embolism or hypotension

PROCEDURE:

A. Technologist:
a. The technologist will notify the interpreting physician (Radiologist/Cardiologist) of anything that was identified in the critical results section and

that the study is available for reading within 30 minutes of completion of the exam.

B. Interpreting Physician (Radiologist/Cardiologist):
a. Diagnostic Imaging E.R. and Inpatients:

i. The Radiologist will report the critical results to the referring provider within 30 minutes of receiving the completed exam, the nurse in
charge of the patient, or another licensed individual, if the patient's provider or nurse is not available. For results, this is accomplished by
verbal communication first and then an immediately dictated report from the Radiologist.

ii. The Radiologist will require the referring provider or other licensed personnel to read back the results.

iii. The Radiologist will document the phone call in his/her dictation including the date and time results were delivered and the name of the
clinical individual to whom results were delivered.

b. Diagnostic Imaging Outpatients:
i. The Radiologist will report the critical results to the referring provider, his/her RN, or office manager within 30 minutes of receiving the

completed exam.

ii. The Radiologist will follow the procedure for documenting the call and the read-back procedures as noted for inpatients.

iii. The Radiologist will document the call in his dictation, including the date and time results were delivered, and the name of the clinical
individual to whom the results were delivered.

c. Cardiology E.R., Inpatients, and Outpatients:
i. Critical echocardiography results will be communicated results verbally to the referring provider, his/her RN, or office manager within 30

minutes of receiving the completed exam.

d. If the referring physician cannot be reached (especially after "business hours"), the interpreting physician will consult with the Emergency Room
Physician to determine whether the patient needs to be contacted directly and advised to seek medical attention. If so, the Emergency Room
Physician will contact the patient. If not, the interpreting physician will contact the referring physician the following morning.

AUDITING DIAGNOSTIC IMAGING RESULTS: Critical test results will be audited and reported to the Radiology Committee quarterly.

APPENDIX C

LIST OF BLOOD GAS/ECHOCARDIOGRAPH CRITICAL TEST RESULTS

A. List of Critical Blood Gas Results

Critical Blood gas results are reported directly to ordering provider within 20 minutes of test completion.

CALL ORDERING PROVIDER WITHIN 20 MINUTES OF TEST COMPLETION
TEST NAME LOW HIGH
Arterial PH <7.25 >7.55
Arterial PC02 <20 >65
Arterial PO2 <51 >200
COHB >21
Venous PH <7.11 >7.69
Venous PCO2 >70
Venous PO2 <20
Cord Arterial PH <7.25 >7.55
Cord Arterial BE <-14

B. Electrocardiograph

Computer generated “ABNORMAL EKG” readout on cardiogram is reported/faxed directly to ordering physician. Out-Patients are requested to remain in
room until cleared to leave by the ordering physician.

Document ID 10381 Revision   1 Hazel Hawkins Memorial HospitalPage 6

16



Document ID 10381 Document Status In preparation
Department Nursing Administration Department Director Fernandez, Jacqueline

Document Owner Enderez, Bernadette Next Review Date
Original Effective Date 04/26/2021

Revised [01/01/2005], [04/01/2007], [06/01/2012], [04/01/2013], [10/01/2019], [04/28/2021 Rev. 0]
Reviewed [04/01/2010], [12/01/2012], [02/01/2016], [03/01/2019]

Attachments: 
(REFERENCED BY THIS DOCUMENT)

Other Documents: 
(WHICH REFERENCE THIS DOCUMENT) Lab and Diagnostic Testing/Critical Results Follow Up 

Paper copies of this document may not be current and should not be relied on for official purposes. The current version is in Lucidoc at

https://www.lucidoc.com/cgi/doc-gw.pl?ref=hhmh:10381$1.

Document ID 10381 Revision   1 Hazel Hawkins Memorial HospitalPage 7

17

https://www.lucidoc.com/cgi/doc-gw.pl?ref=hhmh:11424
https://www.lucidoc.com/cgi/doc-gw.pl?ref=hhmh:10381$1


To: San Benito Health Care District Board of Directors 

From: Amy Breen-Lema, Vice President, Clinic, Ambulatory & Physician Services 

Date: January 11, 2024 

Re: All Clinics – December 2023 

Calendar Year 2023 Recap of Rural Health and Specialty Clinics’ visit volumes 

Total visits in all outpatient clinics for 2023 = 59,682 

• On December 11th, we had the privilege of introducing general surgeon Dr. Joseph
Fabry to our Surgery Clinic. His arrival has significantly enhanced our general surgery
team with his contributions including patient consultations in the clinic and surgical
procedures at our surgery center. We are delighted to have him as part of our team!

• The clinics have been diligently focused on comprehensive preparations involving our
staff, providers, facilities, and our collaboration with Central Coast Alliance for Health
(CCAH), which will be responsible for managing the 21,000 Medi-Cal beneficiaries in
San Benito County in place of Anthem Blue Cross starting January 1, 2024. This
collaborative effort has involved numerous meetings and extensive training sessions in
coordination with CCAH to ensure a seamless transition for our patients.

18



1 

Mabie Southside/Northside Skilled Nursing Facility 
Board Report – January 2024 

To: San Benito Health Care District Board of Directors 

From: Dee Cross, RN, MLS, Interim Director of Nursing, Skilled Nursing Facility 

1. Census Statistics: December 2023
Southside 2023 Northside 2023 

Total Number of Admissions 6 Total Number of Admissions 5 
Number of Transfers from HHH 5 Number of Transfers from HHH 5 
Number of Transfers to HHH 4 Number of Transfers to HHH 2 
Number of Deaths 2 Number of Deaths 0 
Number of Discharges 8 Number of Discharges 7 
Total Discharges 10 Total Discharges 7 
Total Census Days 1,347 Total Census Days 1,433 
Note: Transfers are included in the number of admissions and discharges. Deaths are included in the number of discharges. Total 
census excludes bed hold days. 

2. Total Admissions: December 2023
Southside From Payor Northside From Payor 

1 HHMH/Re-Admit Medicare 3 HHMH Medicare 
1 HHMH/Re-Admit Private 2 HHMH Care-More 

   3 HHMH Medicare 
1 St. Louise Medicare 

Total:    6 Total:    5 

3. Total Discharges by Payor: December 2023
Southside 2023 Northside 2023 

Medicare 4 Medicare 5 
Medicare MC 1 Medicare MC 1 
Medical 4 Medical 1 
Medi-Cal MC 0 Medi-Cal MC 0 
Hospice 0 Private (self-pay) 0 
Private (self-pay) 1 Insurance 0 
Insurance 0 
Total: 10 Total: 7 

19



2 

4. Total Patient Days by Payor: December 2023
Southside 2023 Northside 2023 

Medicare 147 Medicare 87 
Medicare MC 10 Medicare MC 36 
Medical 1,130 Medical 1,248 
Medi-Cal MC 0 Medi-Cal MC 0 
Hospice 0 Private (self-pay) 62 
Private (self-pay) 60 Insurance 0 
Insurance 0 Bed Hold / LOA 0 
Bed Hold / LOA 22 
Total: 1,369 Total: 1,433 
Average Daily Census 44.16 Average Daily Census 46.23 

20



San Benito Health Care District 
A Public Agency 

911 Sunset Drive, Hollister, CA 95023, (831) 637-5711, hazelhawkins.com 

To: San Benito Health Care District Board of Directors 
From: Bernadette Enderez, Director of Diagnostic Services 
Date: January 2024 
Re: Laboratory and Diagnostic Imaging 

Updates: 
Laboratory 

1. Service/Outreach
- Laboratory Outpatient Draw stations closed on January 1 for New Year Holiday.
- Main Hospital and Mc Cray draw station open for limited hours during MLK holiday and had good

turnout.

2. Quality Assurance/Performance Improvement Activities
- STAGO compact analyzer user training and competency. GO LIVE for patient testing 1/2024.

3. Laboratory Statistics

December 2023 YTD 

Total  Outpatient Volume 3906 51150 
Main Laboratory 1022 14260 
HHH Employee Covid Testing 54 2432 
Mc Cray Lab 827 11809 
Sunnyslope Lab 326 5396 
SJB and 4th Street 79 852 
ER and ASC 1598 16401 

Total Inpatient Volume 345 5683 

Diagnostic Imaging 
1. Service/Outreach

- Diagnostic Imaging Outpatient closed on January 1 for New Year Holiday.
- Ultrasound and Xray services open for limited hours during MLK holiday.
- Mammography services open all Saturdays for January.

2. Quality Assurance/Performance Improvement Activities
- Procedure charge master review

21



San Benito Health Care District 
A Public Agency 

911 Sunset Drive, Hollister, CA 95023, (831) 637-5711, hazelhawkins.com 

3. Diagnostic Imaging Statistics

December 2023 YTD 

Radiology 1741 20667 
Mammography 740 8111 
CT 826 11048 
MRI 157 1961 
Echocardiography 105 1260 
Ultrasound 714 9008 

22



TO:   San Benito Health Care District Board of Directors 
FROM:  Liz Sparling, Foundation Director 
DATE:  January 2024 
RE:  Foundation Report 

The Hazel Hawkins Hospital Foundation Board of Trustees met on January 11 at Noon the in the Horizon Room. 

Financial Report for December 

1. Income $   361,759.61 
2. Expenses $     58,400.26 
3. New Donors     2   
4. Total Donations  239 

Allocations 

1. $4,230.49 for the balance of a new Lab Analyzer.  The Foundation funded $45,735.00 for the
equipment and this was additional funds to complete the purchase.

Directors Report 

 Welcome to our New Board members Gerry Wright, Pat Slatten and Mishel Thomas.  This month begins

their three year term.

 Our Scholarship Application has been posted on our website and is due by April 1.

 I met with Andie Posey, our CNO and Monica Hamilton our Director of Quality to discuss the future of the

Palliative Care program here at HHMH.  We then met with Siobhan Green, the CEO of the Hospice Giving

Foundation and we had a very productive meeting about future funding and working together again.

 We sent out an end of the year solicitation letter to donors and have had a very positive response.

 We just received our audit.  Mark Robinson, Irene Recht (Foundation Treasurer) and I are reviewing it and

it will be reviewed in February by the Foundation Finance Committee.

 Our Fundraising Campaign Committee has been very busy meeting with donors and educating the public

on the latest information about HHMH.

 Our tax letters to all donors in 2023 will be mailed out the week of January 22.

The Foundation is very proud of our accomplishments in 2023. 

Here is a list of items allocated to the Hospital in 2023, totaling over $98,000! 

o $1702 for a Language Line for the New Surgery Clinic

o $9112.36 for 4th Street Clinic Waiting Room Furniture

o $2290.60 for Analyzers for the Barragan Diabetes Center

o $3031.25 for 10 chairs for Med/Surg for the Nurses

o $8,000 for batteries and Battery Chargers for Workstation on Wheels

o $9,007.07 for balance of Sterilizer Installation

o $9,114.52 for an EKG Machine for the Hazel Hawkins Primary Care & Surgical

Specialty Center

o $15,800 for a Microscope for the Lab Department

o $35,000 for an Ultrasound Equipment for OB Department

o $5,000 for Furniture for the waiting room in the Main Hospital 23



Board of Director’s Report January 2024 

Marketing/Public Relations 

MARKETING 

 Social Media Posts

 Participated in County-wide Active Attacker Workshop

 Coordinating meeting with all County and City PIO’s

 Promoted 1st Baby of the New Year

EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS/DISASTER COMMUNICATIONS 

 REACH  ENGAGEMENTS 

COMMUNITY 

24



Working with Marcus Young from townKRYER PR agency on proactive PR: 

Press Releases 

 HHMH Receives Letter of Intent from Insight

Media Requests: 

 Answered media request from BenitoLink about prevalence of COVID/RSV/Flu in the ER and

patients being admitted.

 Assisting departments with in-house forms creation and printing.

MEDIA 

Board of Director’s Report January 2024- page 2 

Marketing/Public Relations 

Employees: 

 Hazel’s Headlines

 Employee Forums

EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT 

COST SAVING MEASURES 

25



Page | 1 of 2 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
DISTRICT FACILITIES & SERVICE DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 

Thursday, January 18, 2023 
4:00 P.M. – Great Room 

MINUTES 

I. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL:
The meeting of the District’s Facilities & Service Development Committee was called to order by Jeri Hernandez at
4:00p.m.

PRESENT: Jeri Hernandez, Board President 
Mary Casillas, Interim, VP, Chief Executive Officer 
Mark Robinson, VP, Chief Finance Officer 
Andrea Posey, Interim, VP, Chief Nursing Officer 
Amy Breen-Lema, VP, Clinics, Ambulatory & Physicians Services 
Doug Mays, Senior Director, Support Services 
William Pollard, Plant Operations Manager 
Tina Pulido, Plant Operations/Construction Coordinator 

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:
The minutes of the District’s Facilities & Service Development Committee of December 14, 2023 were approved.

III. UPDATE ON CURRENT PROJECTS:
• HHH Autoclave Replacement (Will P.)

Will P. reported that this project is currently under HCAI review and awaiting installation date.

• HHH Boiler Replacement (Will P.)
Will P. reported that this project is currently under HCAI review and awaiting installation date.

• HHH Pharmacy Pyxis Locker Installation (Will P.)
Will P. reported that the Pyxis Locker has been installed, project completed.

• HHH Lab Equipment Replacement (Will P.)
Will P. reported that this project is in the design stage.

• HHH Respiratory Therapy TJC POC Case Work (Will P.)
Will P. reported that this project is in the design stage.

IV. UPDATE ON PENDING PROJECTS:
• IT Split System 5T Pkg. Unit (RTU) Replacement (Will P.)

Will P. reported that this project is in the planning and budgeting stage.

• HHH Chiller Motor Installation (Will P.)
Will P. reported that this project has been completed.

• HHH Med Sur Double Door Replacement (Will P.)
Will P. reported that this project is in the planning stage.

• HHH Radiology RTU Replacement (Will P.)
Will P. reported that this project is in the planning stage.

26



DISTRICT FACILITIES & SERVICE DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE, JANUARY 18, 2024, 4:00PM 
Page | 2 of 2 

V. UPDATE ON MASTER PLAN:
• SPC-4d (Will P.)

Will P. reported that the HCAI plan was submitted in mid-December. There will be additional
Architectural funding required for additional planning revisions.

VI. PUBLIC COMMENT:  None.

VII. OTHER BUSINESS:

VII. ADJOURNMENT:
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 4:16 PM. The next Facilities Committee
meeting is scheduled for February 15, 2024.

27



MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
CREDENTIALS REPORT 

 January 17, 2023 

NEW APPOINTMENTS 
PRACTITIONER DEPT/SERVICE STATUS 

REQUEST 
TERM 

Michael Grecula, MD Surgery/Orthopedic Surgery Provisional 1/26/24-12/31/25 
Nguyen Pham, MD Medicine/Family Medicine Provisional 1/26/24-12/31/25 
Felix Rivera- Perez, MD Medicine/Teleneurology Telemedicine 1/26/24-12/31/25 

REAPPOINTMENTS 
PRACTITIONER DEPT/SERVICE STATUS TERM 

Claire Hartung, MD Medicine/Family Medicine Active 03/01/24-02/28/26 
Edwin Savay, MD Emergency 

Medicine/Emergency Medicine 
Active 03/01/24-02/28/26 

RESIGNATIONS/RETIREMENTS 
PRACTITIONER DEPT/SERVICE CURRENT 

STATUS 
COMMENT 

Shayan Gates, DO Medicine/Teleneurology Telemed Voluntary Resignation- No longer 
with group 

Michelle Boudreau, DO Medicine/Teleneurology Telemed Voluntary Resignation- No longer 
with group 

Hima Poonati, MD Surgery/Anesthesiology Affiliate Voluntary Resignation- Relocated 
Faraz Shaikh, MD Medicine/Internal 

Medicine 
Provisional Voluntary Resignation- No longer 

with USACS group 
Rev: 2/16/2022 

28



04 FP ICU Core rev 11.2023 

HAZEL HAWKINS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL 
APPLICATION FOR CLINICAL PRIVILEGES 

FAMILY MEDICINE 
Name of Applicant:________________________________________________________________ 

In order to be eligible to request clinical privileges for both initial appointment and reappointment, 
a practitioner must meet the following minimum threshold criteria: 

 Education:  M.D. or D.O.

 Formal Training:  The applicant must demonstrate successful completion of an ACGME or
AOA approved post-graduate residency program in Family Medicine.

 Certification:  Current Board Certification in Family Medicine by the American Board of Family
Medicine, or current, active participation in the process leading to certification

 For Pediatric Privileges - Current certification as an NRP™ provider or instructor in accordance
with the NRP™ curriculum of the AAP/AHA.

 For Obstetric Privileges - Current Advanced Life Support in Obstetrics (ALSO) recommended

 For Surgical Assist Privileges- Current Family Medicine Core privileges, successful completion
of an ACGME or AOA approved post-graduate residency program in Family Medicine, and
current Board Certification in Family Medicine by the American Board of Family Medicine, or
current, active participation in the process leading to certification.

 Required Clinical Experience:  The applicant for initial appointment or reappointment
must be able to demonstrate that he/she has satisfactorily performed services as an attending
physician in the past 24 months for at least:

1. 30 adult inpatients for the General Medicine Core
2. 30 newborns & 6 pediatric patients for Pediatric Core
3. 24 vaginal deliveries for the Obstetric Core
4. 20 ICU/CCU-level patients for the Critical Care Core

If the applicant meets the above criteria, he/she may request privileges as specified below. 

29



04 FP ICU Core rev 11.2023 

I hereby request privileges as follows: 

Family Medicine Core Privileges 

 General Medicine Core:
Privileges include admission, workup, diagnosis, and provision of treatment to nonsurgical patients; to admit
surgical patients for preoperative and postoperative medical care, and to assist in surgery.  Core procedures
include thoracentesis, paracentesis, joint aspiration, arterial puncture, gastric lavage, incision & drainage of
simple abscess, venous cutdown, proctoscopy, lumbar puncture, central venous line placement.

____Requested ____Approved 

 Pediatric Core:
Privileges include admission, workup, diagnosis, and provision of treatment to infants & children, including
newborn circumcision, lumbar puncture, neonatal intubation, and stabilization of newborns requiring transfer.

____Requested ____Approved 

 Obstetric Core:                                          
Privileges include admission, workup, diagnosis, and provision of treatment to perinatal patients (including
diet-controlled diabetics) and perform normal spontaneous vaginal delivery, and uncomplicated postpartum
care.  Mandatory OBG consults are required for pre-term labor < 35 weeks, diabetes in pregnancy not
controlled by diet,  eclampsia, pre-eclampsia, pre-term induction, breech delivery, multiple gestations or other
malpresentations, possible placenta previa or abruption placenta, prolonged active phase of labor, prolapse
of cord, intra-partum or pre-partum obstetric sepsis, suspected fetal distress, or pregnancy beyond 41 weeks
gestation  OR, OTHER COMPLICATED OBSTETRICAL CONDITIONS

____Requested ____Approved 

Physicians with this level of privileges are expected to request consultation: 
a) when doubt exists as to the diagnosis following a complete diagnostic evaluation;
b) in cases where expected improvement is not apparent;
c) when specialized medical therapeutic or diagnostic techniques are indicated

NOTE:  If last 24-months experience does not meet requirements for core privileges listed above and still request
privileges, please clarify below. 

____Requested ____Approved 

30



04 FP ICU Core rev 11.2023 

Critical Care Unit Core Privileges 

Privileges include admission, consultation, evaluation, diagnosis, and treatment of patients in need of critical care (both 
medical and surgical patients). Privileges include airway maintenance (including intubation), ventilator management, 
interpretation of hemodynamic recording systems, central venous cannulation, tube thoracostomy, Swan-Ganz insertion, 
use of IV thrombolytics and other critical care medications, cardiac life support (including emergent cardio-version), and 
arterial line placement.  

NOTE:  If last 24-months experience does not meet requirements for core privileges listed above and still request
privileges, please clarify below. 

____Requested                ____Approved 

Surgical Assist Privileges 

Privileges include assist in surgery under the direct supervision of the surgeon, including (but not limited to) suture 
uncomplicated lacerations, incise and drain abscesses, simple skin biopsy or excision, remove non-penetrating 
corneal foreign body, preoperative care of surgical patients, and postoperative medical care of surgical patients with 
the approval of the attending physician or surgeon. Cannot act as the attending surgeon.  

NOTE:  If last 24-months experience does not meet requirements for core privileges listed above and still request
privileges, please clarify below. 

____Requested ____Approved 

Core privileges do not include any of the following specific privileges.  For each, the applicant must demonstrate the 
minimum training and experience as defined below. 

Family Practice Specific Privileges 

PROCEDURE TRAINING      EXPERIENCE 
INITIAL       LAST 

24 MTHS 

REQUESTED APPROVED 

Moderate sedation Passing score on hospital exam N/A 

Fluoroscopy equipment Current CA Fluoroscopy Permit N/A 

Elective Cardioversion Family Practice residency with 
training in procedure 

2 1 

31



04 FP ICU Core rev 11.2023 

EKG Interpretation Family Practice residency with 
training in procedure. 

50         25 

Bone marrow aspiration or 
biopsy 

Family Practice residency with 
training in procedure. 

Chest Tube Insertion Family Practice residency with 
training in procedure. 

Insertion of temporary 
pacemaker 

Family Practice residency with 
training in procedure, plus 
ICU/CCU Core Privileges 

Diagnostic bronchoscopy for 
pneumonia 

Family Practice residency with 
training in procedure, plus 
ICU/CCU Core Privileges 

Therapeutic bronchoscopy Family Practice residency with 
training in procedure, plus 
ICU/CCU Core Privileges 

Operative vaginal delivery, 
vacuum extraction 
Low/Outlet 

Family Practice residency with 
specific training in vacuum 
delivery 

15 1 

Operative vaginal delivery, 
Forceps 
Low/Outlet 

Family Practice residency with 
specific training in forceps 
delivery 

15 1 

NOTE:  If last 24-months experience does not meet requirements for core privileges listed above and still request
privileges, please clarify below. 

ADDITIONAL AND SPECIFIC PRIVILEGES REQUESTED 

PROCEDURE REQUESTED APPROVED 

___________________________________________________        ______       ______ 

___________________________________________________        ______       ______ 

___________________________________________________        ______       ______ 

___________________________________________________        ______       ______ 

I certify that I have had the necessary training and experience to perform the procedures I have 
requested. 

32



04 FP ICU Core rev 11.2023 

5 

Name of Applicant:________________________________________ Date:____________________ 

Signature of Applicant:______________________________________________________________ 

APPROVALS: 
All privileges delineated have been individually considered and have been recommended based 
upon the physician's specialty, licensure, specific training, experience, health status, current 
competence and peer recommendations. 

Applicant may perform privileges as indicated. 

Exceptions/Limitations:   None    Specify below 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________ ____________________ 
Medicine Chair Date 

_________________________________________________ ____________________ 
Perinatal Chair Date 

Approved Perinatal Department:   03/27/07, revised 03/27/12, revised 09/24/13 
Approved Medicine Department:   06/05/07, revised 03/08/12, no Med revisions 
Approved Medical Executive Committee: 06/19/07, revised 03/21/12, revised 02/19/14 
Approved Board of Directors: 06/28/07, revised 05/31/12, revised 02/27/14 

33



1 CRNA Privileges 

HAZEL HAWKINS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL 
CLINICAL PRIVILEGES DELINEATION FORM 

CERTIFIED REGISTERED NURSE ANESTHETIST (CRNA) 

Name of Applicant: 

In order to be eligible to request clinical privileges for both initial appointment and reappointment, the 
applicant must meet the following qualifications: 

 Minimum formal training: Applicants must be able to demonstrate successful completion of a Nurse
Anesthesia educational program accredited by the American Association of Nurse Anesthetist (AANA)
Council on Accreditation of Nurse Anesthetist Educational Programs (CANAEP), or a predecessor or
successor agency.

 Current Certification by the National Board on Certification and Recertification of Nurse Anesthetists
(NBCRNA).

 In addition, the CRNA applicant must meet the following requirements:
 Possession of a current unrestricted California RN license
 Possession of a current unrestricted California CRNA license
 Possession of current ACLS certification
 Evidence of current professional liability insurance coverage with limits required by the Medical

Staff Bylaws.
 Evidence of forty (40) hours of continuing education in the past two (2) years.
 The Certified Registered Nurse Anesthetist will be responsible to the Medical Director of

Anesthesia, and to the Medical Executive Committee.
 Required previous experience: Documentation of training and experience of requested practice

prerogatives and 200 patient care activities for the CRNA providing services for patients for the
preceding two (2) years.

New applicants will be required to provide documentation of the number and types of cases they were involved 
with during the past 24 months. Applicants have the burden of producing information deemed adequate by the 
Medical Staff for a proper evaluation of current competence, and other qualifications. 

If the applicant meets the above criteria, he/she may request privileges as specified below. 

REQUESTED 
(CRNA) 

GRANTED 
(Dept Chair) 

� � Obtain a complete History & Physical exam 
� � Perform pre-anesthetic assessment of patient including assignment of an ASA status and 

development of an anesthetic plan 

34



2 CRNA Privileges 

REQUESTED 
(CRNA) 

GRANTED 
(Dept Chair) 

� � Render informed consent pertinent to the proposed anesthetic plan 
� � Management of the pre, intra, and postoperative patient including post-op acute pain 

management. 
� � Order, conduct and interpret labs and other diagnostic studies. 
� � Performance of tasks and functions which fall within the usual and customary scope of 

the CRNA 
� � Consults with Anesthesiologists, Surgeons, or other Specialists when needed to facilitate 

patient care 
� � Establish and maintain patient airway 
� � Establish peripheral arterial and venous access lines 
� � Central Venous Catheter Placement 
� � Recognize and treat complications of anesthesia 
� � Initiate resuscitation measures using ACLS protocols 
� � Ordering, administration, and monitoring of blood and blood products for resuscitation 

and physiologic stability 
� � Evaluate the post anesthetic course, release patients from post-anesthesia recovery 

care following department and hospital protocols 
� � Provide orders regarding peri-operative drugs to be administered by other nurses 
� � Provide intravenous sedation or monitored anesthesia care 

General Anesthesia: 
� � • Inhalation Anesthesia
� � • Intravenous Anesthesia

Regional Anesthesia: 
� � • Epidural Anesthesia (minimum 20 cases over past 24 months)
� � • Topical and Infiltration as in Field Blocks
� � • Subarachnoid Blocks
� � • Upper extremity peripheral nerve blocks
� � • Lower extremity peripheral nerve blocks
� � • Thoracic peripheral nerve blocks
� � • Truncal peripheral nerve blocks

CRNA Applicant:  Date 

Medical Director, Anesthesia  Date 

Chair, Surgery Department:_ Date 

Approved Medical Executive Committee: 06/15/2022 
Approved Board of Directors: 06/23/2022 

35



36



37



Chief Nursing Officer Report 

December 2023 

Andie Posey, Interim CNO 

In the month of December CNO activities included the following: 

Nursing  

• Identifying and correcting care issues using evidence based solutions such as the Society of
Critical Care Medicine’s bundle to expedite ICU care.

• New DON for the SNF started on December 18th and completing an initial assessment and any
corrections that need to be addressed immediately.

• Hemorrhage cart added to the OR for OB patients in recovery.

Regulatory 

• Joint Commission Mock Survey results were received. Workgroups are being set up to address
the issues.

• Patient experience champion has been identified and will be implementing a formal program to
increase patient experience scores as reported by Press Ganey.

Utilization Management 

• Continuing Finance/Nursing/Case Management huddle daily to discuss any patient issues,
barriers to care and ensure proper admission status.

• Continuing to review all financial denials and determining the root cause of the denial,
documenting trends and addressing the clinical process issues associated with the denials.

• Hospital lead for CDI project with INNOVA.

38



San Benito Health Care District 
Board of Directors Meeting 

December 2023 
Chief Nursing Officer Report 

 Emergency Department:

• Visits: 2390 

• Admitted: 128 

• Stroke: 5 

• Left Without being seen: 14 

 Med / Surg:

• ADC: 11.73 

 ICU:

• ADC: 2.66 

 OB

• Deliveries: 36 

• Outpatients Visits: 89 

 OR

• Inpatient: 38 

• Outpatient: 17 

• GI: 75 

• Total ASC cases: 165 

• Admit: 5 

39



San Benito Health Care District 
Finance Committee Minutes 
January 18, 2024 - 4:30pm 

Present: Jeri Hernandez, Board President  
G.W. Devon Pack, Assistant Secretary 
Mary Casillas, Interim Chief Executive Officer 
 Mark Robinson, Chief Financial Officer 
Andie Posey, Chief Nursing Officer 
Amy Breen-Lema, Vice President Clinic, Ambulatory & Physician Services 
Sandra DiLaura, Interim-Controller        

1. CALL TO ORDER
The meeting of the Finance Committee was called to order at 4:30pm.

2. REVIEW FINANCIAL UPDATES
A. December 2023 Financial Statements
The Financial Statements for December 2023 were presented for review.  For the month ending 
December 31, 2023, the District’s Net Surplus (Loss) is $4,409,547 compared to a budgeted 
Surplus (Loss) of $417,341.  The District exceeded its budget for the month by $3,992,206. 

YTD as of December 31, 2023, the District’s Net Surplus (Loss) is $6,929,729 compared to a 
budgeted Surplus (Loss) of $1,481,465.  The District is exceeding its budget YTD by $5,448,264. 

Acute discharges were 160 for the month, under budget by 29 discharges or 15%.  The ADC was 
16.58 compared to a budget of 20.88.  The ALOS was 3.21.  The acute I/P gross revenue was 
under budget by $2.6 million while O/P services gross revenue was $3.79 million or 17% over 
budget.  ER I/P visits were 128 and ER O/P visits were over budget by 79 visits or 4%.  The RHCs 
& Specialty Clinics treated 3,453 (includes 349 visits at the Diabetes Clinic) and 887 visits 
respectively.      

The District accrued $2,139,154 for the CY 2023 Hospital Quality Assurance Fee (HQAF) Direct 
payment portion and $1,216,139 for the IGT portion.  The total of $3,355,293 is for six months. 
The annualized total is $6,710,586 for FYE June 30, 2024.      

Other Operating revenue exceeded budget by $92,171 due mainly to 340B revenue and the 
Magellan RX rebate exceeding their respective budgets.         

Operating Expenses were over budget by $271,972 due mainly to variances in:  Professional 
Fees exceeding budget by $341,585 and Registry $175,955.  These overages somewhat offset by 
Employee Benefits being under budget by $238,418 (Sick Leave accounted for $113,795 in 
savings) and Salaries and Wages by $81,342.         

Non-operating Revenue was under budget by $90,542 due to the timing of donations.  However, 
donations are exceeding budget by $16,523 YTD.        

40



The SNFs ADC was 89.90 for the month.  The Net Surplus (Loss) is $250,801 compared to a 
budget of $238,192.  YTD, the Net Surplus (Loss) is $2,467,645, exceeding its budget by 
$1,125,204.  

B. December 2023 Finance Dashboard
The Finance Dashboard and Cash Flow Statement were reviewed by the Committee. 

C. Other Financial Updates
Other items noted included: 

• Increase in revenue due to primarily the accrual of the Hospital Quality Assurance Fund
(HQAF) direct quarterly payment of $2.139 million and IGT payment of $1.216 million,
the dollar amounts were not finalized until early January. The February IGT funds of
$472,508 expected by April/May 2024 and the March IGT funds of $1.257 million
expected by May/June 2024. The first QIP loan repayment of $1.253 million due by
February 28, 2024 and the second QIP loan repayment of $1.222 million due by May 31,
2024.

3. CONSIDER RECOMMENDATION FOR BOARD APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED CHA/HOSPITAL
COUNCIL 2024 DUES
Dues for participation in The California Hospital Association (CHA) monthly dues of $4,449.00 for
period Jan 1, 2024 – Dec 31, 2024 for $53,381.00.  The Finance Committee recommends this
resolution for Board approval.

4. CONSIDER RECOMMENDATION FOR BOARD APPROVAL OF JOSEPH M FABRY, D.O.
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT AND JOSEPH FABRY, D.O. PHYSICIAN RECRUITMENT
AGREEMENT
The Professional Services Agreement for full-time General Surgery services within the hospital
and surgery clinic has proposed effective date of January 1, 2024, a 2-year term, and 60-day
termination clause. The base monthly compensation will be set within 75th percentile of fair
market value at $45,500 per month.  A recruitment incentive and relocation agreement of
$20,000 is forgivable over two (2) years. The Finance Committee recommends this resolution for
Board approval.

5. CONSIDER RECOMMENDATION FOR BOARD APPROVAL OF STEFAN KLEIN, M.D.
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
The Professional Services Agreement for part-time (up to 16 hours/week) clinic-based

Orthopedic Hand and Upper extremity professional services has proposed effective date of
February 1, 2024, a 1-year term, and 30-day termination clause. The base daily rate will be set
within median fair market value at $2,900 per day, estimated monthly cost of $25,133. The
Finance Committee recommends this resolution for Board approval.

6. ADJOURNMENT
There being no further business, the Committee was adjourned at 5:01 pm.

Respectfully submitted, 

Sandra DiLaura 
Interim-Controller 

41



42



43



44



45



46



47



Date: 01/12/24@ 1610 

User: SDILAURA 

CURRENT ASSETS 

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT 

'PATIENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

BAD DEBT ALLOWANCE 

CONTRACTUAL RESERVES 
OTHER RECEIVABLES 

INVENTORIES 

PREPAID EXPENSES 

DUE TO\FROM THIRD PARTIES 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

ASSETS WHOSE USE IS LIMITED 

HAZEL HAWKINS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL 

HOLLISTER, CA 

For the month ended 12/31/23 

CURR MONTH PRIOR MONTH 

12/31/23 11/30/23 

19 .141. 516 

62,620.823 

(7,080,605) 

(39,903,437) 
8,507.773 

3,991.556 

2.688.418 

1.978.192 

51. 944. 236

18,849.384 

58. 821. 246

(7,164,602)

(37,582.961)

7,089.795 

4,043.979 

2,358.788 

2.037.861 

48.453.l\9l 

POS/NEG 

VARIANCE 

292,131 

3,799,577 

83,998 

(2,320,476) 

1.417,978 

(52,423) 

329,630 

(59,669) 

3,490,745 

PERCENTAGE 

VARIANCE 

2 

7 

(1) 

6 

20 

(1) 

14 

(3) 

7 

PRlOR YR 

06/30/23 

13,649,396 

51. 674,982

(5,227.791)

(32,708,039)
8. 381. 301

4,057.813

2.042.543

2,784,747

44,654,951 

BOARD DESIGNATED FUNDS 6,099,974 5,076,073 1,023,900 20 3,825,798 

TOTAL LIMITED USE ASSETS 6,099,974 5,076.073 1,023.900 20 3,825,798 

PROPERTY, PLANT. AND EQUIPMENT 

LAND & LAND IMPROVEMENTS 

BLDGS & BLDG IMPROVEMENTS 

EQUIPMENT 

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 

GROSS PROPERTY.PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT 

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 

NET PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT 

OTHER ASSETS 
UNAMORTIZED LOAN COSTS 

PENSION DEFERRED OUTFLOWS NET 

TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 

TOTAL UNRESTRICTED ASSETS 

RESTRICTED ASSETS 

TOTAL ASSETS 

3,370.474 

100.098,374 

43,821.068 

956,198 

148,246, 114 

(92,413,121) 

55,832.992 

434,573 

18,285,289 

18,719,862 

3,370,474 

100,098,374 

43,814,011 

956,198 

148,239,057 

(92,072,265) 

56,166.792 

440,644 

18,285,289 

18,725,933 

132,597,065 128,422,290 

67,051 53,509 

132,664,116 128,475,799 

0 

0 

,7, 057 

0 

7,057 

(340. 857) 

(333,800) 

(6,071) 

0 

(6,071) 

4,174,775 

13,542 

4,188,317 

0 3,370,474 

0 100,098,374 

0 43,302,208 

0 880,124 
----

0 147,651,180 

0 (90,362,507) 

(1) 57,288,673

(1) 

0 

0 

470,999 

18,285.289 

18,756.288 

3 124,525,709 

25 125,193 

3 124,650,902 

PAGE 1 

48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



T
H

E
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 

V
A

L
U

E
 O

F
 

Y
O

U
R

 D
U

E
S

 

$
5

8
5

 f
o

r 
e

v
e

ry
 $

1
 o

f 
d

u
e

s 
In

 2
02

3,
 f

o
r 

e
v

e
ry

 $
1 

o
f 

d
u

e
s 

y
o

u
 p

a
id

, C
H

A
 

g
e

n
e

ra
te

d
 $

S
8

S
 o

f 
v

a
lu

e
. 

Bi
lli

on
s 

m
or

e 
w

er
e 

sa
ve

d 
vi

a 
a 

le
gi

sl
at

iv
e 

so
lu

ti
on

 o
n 

m
in

im
um

 w
ag

e 
fo

r 
he

al
th

 c
ar

e 
w

or
ke

rs
 t

ha
t 

cr
ea

te
s 

a 
ti

er
ed

 s
te

p-
up

 
pl

an
, p

re
em

pt
s 

lo
ca

l b
al

lo
t 

in
it

ia
ti

ve
s 

on
 w

ag
es

 
an

d 
co

m
pe

ns
at

io
n 

ca
ps

, a
nd

 li
m

it
s 

th
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

 
w

or
ke

rs
 t

o 
w

ho
m

 t
he

 w
ag

e 
ap

pl
ie

s 
(t

hi
s 

w
as

 a
 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
fr

om
 t

he
 b

ill
 a

s 
it

 w
as

 in
 

pr
in

t 
-

$2
1 

in
 2

02
4 

an
d 

$2
5 

in
 2

02
5 

st
at

ew
id

e)
. 

T
hi

s 
is

 p
os

si
bl

e 
be

ca
us

e 
-

as
 f

ou
r 

un
it

ed
 

as
so

ci
at

io
ns

 r
ep

re
se

nt
in

g 
m

or
e 

th
an

 4
00

 h
os

pi
ta

ls
 

an
d 

he
al

th
 s

ys
te

m
s 

-
w

e 
ha

ve
 a

 fa
r m

or
e 

po
w

er
fu

l 
pr

es
en

ce
 n

at
io

na
lly

, s
ta

te
w

id
e,

 a
nd

 lo
ca

lly
 t

ha
n 

an
y 

si
ng

le
 h

os
pi

ta
l o

r 
sy

st
em

 c
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

on
 it

s 
ow

n.
 W

e 
ar

e 
pr

ou
d 

to
 s

ha
re

 t
he

se
 h

ig
hl

ig
ht

s 
of

 
ho

w
 y

ou
r 

as
so

ci
at

io
ns

 s
tr

en
gt

he
ne

d 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

's
 

ho
sp

it
al

s 
an

d 
he

al
th

 s
ys

te
m

s.
 

S
ir

i 
N

e
ls

o
n

 

B
o

a
rd

 C
h

a
ir

 

H
o

sp
it

a
l C

o
u

n
ci

l -
N

o
rt

h
e

rn
 &

 C
e

n
tr

a
l C

a
li

fo
rn

ia
 

C
E

O
 

M
a
rs

h
al

l 
M

e
d

ic
a

l C
e
n

te
r 

T
o

d
d

 S
u

n
t

ra
p

a
k

 

B
o

a
rd

 C
h

a
ir

 

C
a
li

fo
rn

ia
 H

o
sp

it
a

l 
A

ss
o

ci
a

ti
o

n
 

P
re

s
id

e
n

t
 &

 C
E

O
 

V
a
lle

y
 C

h
il

d
re

n
's

 H
e

a
lt

h
ca

re
 

�
 H

os
pi

ta
l C

ou
nc

il 
n

 N
or

th
er

n 
&

 C
en

tr
al

 C
al

if
or

ni
a 
•
 C

a
lif

o
rn

ia
 

H
o

s
p

it
a

l 
A

s
s

oc
ia

ti
o

n
 

S
T

A
T

E
 &

 F
E

D
E

R
A

L
 A

C
C

O
M

PL
IS

H
M

E
N

T
S

 

$2
1.

1 
bi

lli
on

 -
M

e
d

i-
C

a
l 

P
a

y
m

e
n

ts
D

ev
el

op
ed

 a
 fr

am
ew

or
k 

th
at

 w
ill

 g
en

er
at

e 
$2

1.
1 

bi
lli

on
 

fr
om

 t
he

 2
02

3-
24

 H
os

pi
ta

l F
ee

 P
ro

gr
am

, s
ub

je
ct

 t
o 

fe
de

ra
l a

pp
ro

va
l. 

$2
.9

 b
ill

io
n 

-
A

 P
o

o
l 

to
 W

h
ic

h
 H

o
sp

it
a

ls
 C

a
n

 
A

p
p

ly
 fo

r 
B

e
h

a
vi

o
ra

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 I
n

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
 

W
or

ke
d 

w
it

h 
th

e 
Le

gi
sl

at
ur

e 
an

d 
ad

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n 
to

 
en

su
re

 b
ill

io
ns

 in
 n

ew
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 fu
nd

s 
ca

n 
be

 u
se

d 
to

 b
ui

ld
 in

pa
ti

en
t p

sy
ch

ia
tr

ic
 b

ed
 c

ap
ac

it
y.

 

$1
.7

 b
ill

io
n 

an
nu

al
ly

 -
M

C
O

 T
a

x
 

Re
ac

he
d 

an
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t 
to

 d
ed

ic
at

e 
m

an
ag

ed
 c

ar
e 

or
ga

ni
za

ti
on

 t
ax

 re
ve

nu
e 

to
 M

ed
i-

C
al

 p
ro

vi
de

rs
, w

hi
ch

 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

br
in

g 
$4

.9
 b

ill
io

n 
fo

r 
a 

va
ri

et
y 

of
 h

ea
lt

h 
ca

re
 

se
rv

ic
es

. 

$1
 b

ill
io

n 
in

cr
ea

se
 -

M
e

d
ic

a
re

 W
a

g
e

 I
n

d
e

x
In

cr
ea

se
d 

pa
ym

en
ts

 t
o 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 h

os
pi

ta
ls

, s
ta

rt
in

g 
in

 2
02

4,
 a

nd
 a

bs
en

t 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

ol
ic

y,
 

co
nt

in
ui

ng
 t

he
re

af
te

r, 
as

 a
 d

ire
ct

 r
es

ul
t 

of
 li

ti
ga

ti
on

 
-

in
cl

ud
in

g 
a 

su
it

 b
ro

ug
ht

 b
y 

C
H

A
 o

n 
be

ha
lf 

of
 it

s 
m

em
be

rs
 -

to
 a

lt
er

 C
M

S
' p

ol
ic

y 
to

 in
cl

ud
e 

re
cl

as
si

fie
d

ur
ba

n 
ho

sp
it

al
s 

in
 th

e 
ca

lc
ul

at
io

n 
of

 a
 s

ta
te

's
 r

ur
al

 fl
oo

r.

$3
00

 m
ill

io
n 

-
D

is
tr

e
ss

e
d

 H
o

sp
it

a
l 

L
o

a
n

 P
ro

g
ra

m
S

ec
ur

ed
 a

 li
fe

lin
e 

fo
r 

m
an

y 
st

ru
gg

lin
g 

ho
sp

it
al

s 
w

it
h 

no
-i

nt
er

es
t l

oa
ns

. 

$2
89

 m
ill

io
n 

-
F

E
M

A
 P

u
b

li
c 

A
ss

is
ta

n
ce

 F
u

n
d

s 
Fa

ci
lit

at
ed

 t
he

 o
bl

ig
at

io
n 

of
 $

28
9 

m
ill

io
n 

to
 h

os
pi

ta
ls

. 

A
V

E
R

T
E

D
: 

$1
.4

 b
ill

io
n 

-
W

o
rk

e
rs

' C
o

m
p

e
n

sa
ti

o
n

P
re

su
m

p
ti

o
n

 
Pa

us
ed

 a
 b

ill
 th

at
 w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
cr

ea
te

d 
a 

re
bu

tt
ab

le
 

pr
es

um
pt

io
n 

in
 t

he
 w

or
ke

rs
' c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

sy
st

em
. 

$9
2 

m
ill

io
n 

-
B

e
h

a
v

io
ra

l H
e

a
lt

h
 S

ta
ffi

n
g

Pa
us

ed
 a

 b
ill

 t
ha

t 
w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
co

st
ly

, 
un

re
al

is
ti

c 
ne

w
 s

ta
ff

in
g 

ra
ti

os
 f

or
 b

eh
av

io
ra

l h
ea

lt
h 

cr
is

es
 in

 a
ll 

C
al

if
or

ni
a 

ho
sp

it
al

s.
 

Q
U

A
L

IT
Y

 &
 P

A
T

IE
N

T
 S

A
F

E
T

Y
 

$9
01

 m
ill

io
n 

sa
v

e
d

T
he

 H
os

pi
ta

l Q
ua

lit
y 

ln
st

it
ut

e'
s 

eff
or

ts
 o

n 
be

ha
lf

 o
f 

ho
sp

it
al

s 
st

at
ew

id
e 

-
in

cl
ud

in
g 

in
it

ia
ti

ve
s 

to
 r

ed
uc

e 
se

ps
is

 m
or

ta
lit

y 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

e 
m

at
er

ni
ty

 o
ut

co
m

es
 -

re
su

lt
ed

 in
: 

@
 

®
 

®
 

11
4,

62
9 

h
a

rm
s 

a
v

o
id

e
d

 
9,

56
3 

li
v

e
s 

sa
v

e
d

 
$9

01
 m

ill
io

n 
in

 s
a

v
in

g
s 

R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
 A

C
C

O
M

PL
IS

H
M

E
N

T
S

 

.+
 

P
o

w
e

r 
a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 S
a

fe
ty

 

, 
A

dv
oc

at
ed

 fo
r 

lo
ng

-t
er

m
 s

0l
ut

io
ns

 fo
r p

ow
er

 
re

lia
bi

lit
y 

w
it

h 
th

e 
C

al
if

or
ni

a 
Pu

bl
ic

 U
ti

lit
ie

s 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 b

y 
pr

om
ot

in
g 

pl
an

s 
fo

r 
po

w
er

 li
ne

 
un

de
rg

ro
un

di
ng

 in
 c

om
m

un
it

ie
s 

w
it

h 
ho

sp
it

al
s 

at
 

hi
gh

er
 ri

sk
 o

f w
ild

fir
es

 a
nd

 p
ow

er
 in

st
ab

ili
ty

. 

Q
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 H
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

B
e

h
a

v
io

ra
l 

H
e

a
lt

h
 N

e
e

d
s 

C
on

ve
ne

d,
 le

d,
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt
ed

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

of
 c

om
m

un
it

y 
he

al
th

 n
ee

ds
 

as
se

ss
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 s
pe

ci
fic

 c
om

m
un

it
y-

ce
nt

ri
c 

be
ha

vi
or

al
 h

ea
lt

h 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 t

ha
t 

ra
ng

ed
 fr

om
 c

ri
si

s 
tr

ia
ge

 t
o 

re
co

ve
ry

 c
am

pu
s 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

O
 O

 O
 

In
te

n
si

v
e

 E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

 c:=:i
 :::i

 
E

le
ct

e
d

 L
e

a
d

e
rs

 
Ed

uc
at

ed
 lo

ca
l e

le
ct

ed
 le

ad
er

s 
-

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

 n
ew

 r
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
es

 in
 c

it
ie

s 
an

d 
co

un
ti

es
 -

on
 h

os
pi

ta
ls

' s
ig

ni
fic

an
t 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 

ec
on

om
ic

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 t

o 
th

ei
r 

co
m

m
un

it
ie

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
is

su
e 

su
m

m
it

s,
 r

eg
io

na
l m

ee
ti

ng
s,

 
an

d 
on

e-
on

-o
ne

 d
ia

lo
gu

e.
 

2
0

2
3

 

58



59



60



61



competence, experience, and skill comparable to those prevailing in the community; and (iv) not be 
excluded from any governmental healthcare program. 

1.3 Compliance. In connection with the operation and conduct of the Clinic and Hospital and rendition of 
Services, Physician shall, at all times, comply with the applicable terms of this Agreement and with all 
applicable federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations, including requirements for participation in 
the Medicare and Medi-Cal programs, the Hospital medical staff bylaws, rules and regulations, and 
applicable policies and procedures, and will at all times be aware of and participate in meeting the SBHCD 
Corporate Compliance program goals and objectives. 

1.4 Credentialing. In order to be efficiently credentialed with payors contracted with SBHCD, Physician shall 
participate in the Council for Affordable Quality Healthcare ("CAQH") credentialing program and shall 
timely comply with requests from CAQH or SBHCD personnel for (i) credentialing information regarding 
Physician, and (ii) documents necessary for the credentialing of Physician. 

1.5 Use of Premises. No part of the SBHCD premises shall be used at any time by Physician as an office for 
the general or private practice of medicine. 

1.6 Medical Records/Chart Notes. Physician shall provide appropriate and necessary documentation for each 
patient's medical record for all patient encounters in the Clinic and Hospital. 

1.7 Coding. Physician shall properly code all professional services rendered to patients. Physician's coding 
shall be used for purposes of billing for Services provided by Physician. All such coding shall be subject to 
review and audit by an independent auditing company mutually agreed upon by the parties. 

1.8 Hospital Can Coverage. Physician shall be available to take hospital emergency department and unassigned 
patient call on a rotational basis, as determined in accordance with the standards set forth in Exhibit A 
without additional compensation or stipend except as indicated in Exhibit A of this Agreement. 

2. DUTIES AND OBLIGATIONS OF SBHCD

2.1 Duties. SBHCD agrees to furnish at its own cost and expense, for the operation of the Clinic and Hospital, 
the following: 

2.1.1 Space and Equipment. Space and Equipment as may be reasonably required for the operation of the 
Clinic and Hospital as approved by SBHCD. 

2.1.2 Services and Supplies. Maintenance, repair, and replacement of equipment as are reasonably 
required; all utilities, including telephone, power, light, gas, and water; and all supplies that may be 
reasonably required for the operation of the Clinic and Hospital. 

2.1.3 Non-physician Personnel. All non-physician personnel with appropriate education, training and 
experience required to operate the Clinic and Hospital, including a qualified administrative 
manager. SBHCD shall have the sole right and responsibility for the hiring and termination of all 
its employees. SBHCD shall be responsible for the scheduling of non-physician Clinic and Hospital 
personnel. 

2.2 Eligibility. At all times during the term of this Agreement, Clinics and Hospital shall remain eligible to 
participate in the Medicare and Medi-Cal programs. 

2.3 Contracts. SBHCD shall be solely responsible for negotiating all contracts for the reimbursement of 
Services provided in the Clinic and Hospital. SBHCD in its sole and absolute discretion shall determine the 
negotiation parameters for the terms, conditions, and rates for such contracts. 

2.4 Access to Records. Physician shall have access to the SBHCD patient medical and business records for 
quality of care and compliance purposes. 

Fabry PSA- eff 1-1-24 Page 2 of 10 

62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



1.2 Compliance with Agreements. It is Physician's responsibility to come into full compliance with the 
provisions of this Agreement, Physician's Professional Services Agreement, and Hospital's Medical Staff 
Bylaws, Rules and Regulations, including all credentialing and privileging requirements, in order to be able 
to provide Services beginning no later than the Start Date. 

Article 2 Standards 

2.1 Licensure and Board Certification. At all times during the term of this Agreement and any Related 
Agreement, Physician shall maintain Physician's Medical license in the State of California in good standing 
and be Board Certified or remain Board Eligible in Physician's Specialty. 

2.2 Credentialing. Physician shall cooperate with SBHCD to complete all credentialing and recredentialing 
requirements of the Hospital Medical Staff, as applicable, for professionals providing services to SBHCD 
patients and shall submit applications and supporting documentation timely and completely in order to 
comply with the requirements of the credentialing program. 

2.3 Medical Staff Membership and Hospital Privileges. Physician shall be responsible for obtaining on or 
before Physician's Start Date and maintaining during the term of this Agreement and any Related 
Agreements active membership on Hospital's Medical Staff with appropriate Hospital privileges to provide 
Services pursuant to this Agreement and any Related Agreements and shall be subject to all of the duties 
and responsibilities of that Medical Staff membership. Throughout the term of this Agreement, and 
thereafter, Physician shall be permitted to maintain medical staff privileges at other area hospitals. 

2.3.1 Immediate Termination. Subject to Section 4.4 of this Agreement, in the event that Physician (i) 
does not obtain active status on Hospital's Medical Staff or the appropriate privileges to provide 
Services under this Agreement on or before Physician's Start Date, or (ii) loses active Medical Staff 
membership or privileges at any time during the term of this Agreement or any Related Agreements, 
this Agreement shall terminate immediately, and any sums owed by Physician to SBHCD under 
this Agreement and any Related Agreements shall become due and payable in full immediately. 

2.3.2 Compliance with Rules. Physician shall at all times during the term of this Agreement and any 
Related Agreements comply with all applicable Bylaws, Policies, and Procedures of SBHCD and 
the Bylaws, Rules and regulations, and policies of Hospital's Medical Staff. 

2.4 Corporate CornpUance Program. Physician shall cooperate with Hospital's Corporate Compliance Program, 
as applicable to Services provide pursuant to this Agreement. Physician shall comply with any policies and 
procedures adopted by Hospital as part of the Corporate Compliance Program. 

Article 3 Term & Termination 

3 .1 Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date of this Agreement and continue 
until the later of two (2) years from the Start Date as defined in this Agreement, or until all sums paid to 
Physician under this Agreement are repaid to or forgiven by SBHCD under the terms of this Agreement and 
any Related Agreements. 

3.2 Immediate Termination by S.BHCD. SBHCD may terminate this Agreement immediately upon the 
occurrence of any of the following events: 

3.2.1 Loss or suspension of Physician's license to practice medicine, Physician's conviction (final or on 
appeal) of a felony or any crime involving moral turpitude, Physician's failure to obtain or maintain, 
for any reason, status as a member of the Active Medical Staff of Hospital with appropriate 
privileges to provide Services under this Agreement or Related Agreements; or 

3 .2.2 Physician's appointment of a receiver for Physician's assets, assignment for the benefit of creditors, 
or any relief sought by Physician under any bankruptcy or insolvency act. 

In the event SBHCD terminates this Agreement pursuant to this Section 3.2, Physician shall pay any 
outstanding debt to SBHCD under the terms of this Agreement and any Related Agreements. 

2 

72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



provided by Healthcare District Law, or any other fair hearing procedure regarding medical staff 
appointments or privileges. 

6. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

6.1 lndependent Contractor Status. Physician is engaged in an independent contractor relationship with 
SBHCD in performing all work, services, duties and obligations pursuant to this Agreement. Neither 
SBHCD nor Hospital shall exercise any control or direction over the methods by which Physician performs 
Physician's work and functions, except that Physician shall perform at all times in strict accordance with 
then currently approved methods and practices of Physician's professional specialty. SBHCD's sole interest 
is to ensure that Physician performs and renders services in a competent, efficient and satisfactory manner 
in accordance with high medical standards. 

6.2 Independent Contractor Respon ibilities. The parties expressly agree that no work, act, commission or 
omission of Physician pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be construed to make or 
render Physician, the agent or employee of SBHCD or Hospital. Physician shall not be entitled to receive 
from SBHCD or Hospital vacation pay, sick leave, retirement benefits, Social Security, workers' 
compensation, disability or unemployment insurance benefits or any other employee benefit. 

7. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF PARTIES

7 .1 SBHCD for itself, and its directors, officers, employees and agents ( collectively, "Agents"), and Physician 
(for Physician and Physician's Agents) hereby warrants and represent as follows: 

7 .1.1 Neither it nor any of its Agents (i) is excluded, suspended or debarred from, or otherwise ineligible 
for, participation in any federal or state health care program including, without limitation, Medicare 
or Medi-Cal, or (ii) has been convicted of a criminal offense related to conduct that would or could 
trigger an exclusion from any federal or state health care program including, without limitation, 
Medicare or Medi-Cal; and 

7 .1.2 It shall, and it shall ensure that each of its Agents shall, notify the other parties thereto immediately 
in writing of (i) any threatened, proposed or actual exclusion, suspension or debarment, and/or (ii) 
any conviction of a criminal offense related to conduct that would or could trigger an exclusion, of 
it or any of its Agents from any federal or state health care program. 

8. LIABILITY/MALPRACTICE INSURANCE COVERAGE

8.1 SBHCD and Hospital shall maintain general and professional liability insurance coverage commencing on 
the Start Date and continuing for the term of this Agreement in minimum amounts of $1,000,000 per 
occurrence and $3,000,000 annual aggregate. In the event the coverage that SBHCD and/or Hospital obtains 
to comply with this Section of this Agreement is a "claims made" policy, and SBHCD or Hospital, as 
applicable, changes insurance carriers or terminates coverage upon or after termination of this Agreement, 
SBHCD or Hospital, as applicable, shall immediately obtain and shall maintain "tail" coverage in the 
amounts otherwise required under this Section for at least seven (7) years following termination of this 
Agreement. 

9. PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION

9 .1 Protected Health Information. Physician shall maintain the confidentiality of all Protected Health 
Information ("PHI") in accordance with all applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations, 
including, but not limited to, the California Confidentiality of Medical Information Act and the Federal 
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and regulations promulgated thereunder 
("HIP AA"). Without limiting the foregoing, Physician agrees to maintain PHI, as defined from time to time 
under HIP AA, which may be made available to or received by Physician pursuant to this Agreement, in 
accordance with the requirements of HIP AA. Physician agrees that Physician shall: 

9.1.1 Not use or further disclose PHI in a manner that would violate HIP AA if done by Hospital or violate 
the requirements of applicable laws or this Agreement; 

Klein PSA- eff2-l-24 4 

83



84



85



86



87



88



89



M{MOl>IALHoSAW 
SIOW::D NVll:iNG FAOtlnl� 

1-fOi\'EliEAJ..TH� 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY MANUAL 

Committee Approval: 3/17/22 

Board Approval: 3/24/22 

Policy#: BOD-31 
Reviewed: 

Revised: 

SUBJECT: Compensation of the Chief Executive Officer 

PURPOSE: 

Pg. 1 of 1 

The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of San Benito Health Care District (SBHCD) is the person 
responsible for the efficient operation of SBHCD. Therefore, it is the desire of the San Benito 
Health Care District Board of Directors to provide fair compensation (salary and benefits) to the 
CEO. 

POLICY: 

1. Annually ( as of hire date) the SBHCD Board of Directors shall evaluate the performance
and review the compensation of the Chief Executive Officer to determine if a
compensation adjustment is appropriate.

PROCEDURE: 

1. The Board of Director President shall appoint two (2) members of the Board of Directors
as an Ad Hoc Committee to research comparability data of similar organizations and
similarly qualified individuals.

2. At a duly noticed Board of Directors meeting, the Ad Hoc Committee will make a
recommendation to the full Board of Directors for any compensation (salary and/or
benefits) adjustments based on the review of the data and CEO Performance Review.

3. During the Open Session of the Meeting Agenda, the Board of Directors will consider
and take action on the recommendations of the Ad Hoc Committee for any adjustments
to compensation for the Chief Executive Officer.

90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118


	1.25.24 SBHCD Board Meeting Agenda
	Closed Session Agenda 01.25.24
	SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS JANUARY 25, 2024
	CLOSED SESSION AGENDA ITEMS
	[  ] CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS
	[ X] CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-EXISTING LITIGATION
	[  ] CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-ANTICIPATED LITIGATION
	[  ] LIABILITY CLAIMS
	[  ] THREAT TO PUBLIC SERVICES OR FACILITIES
	[  ] PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT
	[  ] PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT
	[  ] PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
	[  ] PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE
	[  ] CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR
	[  ] CASE REVIEW/PLANNING
	[  ] REPORT INVOLVING TRADE SECRET
	[X] HEARINGS/REPORTS
	[  ] CHARGE OR COMPLAINT INVOLVING INFORMATION PROTECTED

	BOD Meeting Minutes 12.21.23
	Special Meeting BOD-Minutes 1.08.24
	10381 - (Toshi's report)Critical Value_Test Reporting and “Read Back”
	Amy's Clinics' Board Report
	January 2024 - SNF Board Report - LLG
	Laboratory and Diagnostic Imaging Board Report_January 2024
	01.2024 Foundation Board Report
	Marketing Report - January 2024
	Facilities Comm Min_1.18.24
	MEC 1.25.24 Report
	FAMILY MEDICINE
	Family Medicine Core Privileges
	ADDITIONAL AND SPECIFIC PRIVILEGES REQUESTED
	ADP8201.tmp
	HAZEL HAWKINS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
	CERTIFIED REGISTERED NURSE ANESTHETIST (CRNA)

	ADPC4E4.tmp
	NEW APPOINTMENTS
	REAPPOINTMENTS
	RESIGNATIONS/RETIREMENTS
	Rev: 2/16/2022


	CEO Board Report 1.2024
	CNO narrative report Jan 2024
	Dec 2023 Board Report_CNO
	January 18, 2024 Finance Committee minutes
	1.18.24 SBHCD Finance Committee Packet
	Drew's HR report
	ADPBE4F.tmp
	AMENDED AGENDA




